
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday 27 June 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Environment 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 5 July 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Nikki Manterfield (Chairman) 
Councillor Gloria Johnson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor John Cottier, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor 
Ben Green and Councillor Hannah Westropp 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Comments from Members of the public 
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion. 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of Interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.   Minutes from the meeting held on 10 May 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 16) 

5.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider actions agreed at the meeting held on 10 May 2022. 
 

(Pages 17 - 18) 

6.   Q4 Year End Performance 
This year-end update report outlines South Kesteven District Councils 
performance against the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) for the year of 2021/22. 

(Pages 19 - 29) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

7.   Climate Action Group meeting update/Climate Change Update 
This report aims to provide a short update on workstreams impacting on South 
Kesteven District Council’s climate change and carbon reduction ambitions. 
 

(Pages 31 - 34) 

8.   Witham Slea Blue Green Corridor Project Update 
To provide the Committee with an update on the projects within the 
Witham/Slea Blue Green Corridor. 
 

(Pages 35 - 43) 

9.   Work Programme 2022-23 
To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022-23. 
 

(Pages 45 - 47) 

10.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

 

Minutes 
Environment Overview and  
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Tuesday, 10 May 2022, 10:00am 
 

 

Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 
Committee Members present 
 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield (Chairman) 
Councillor Gloria Johnson (Vice-Chairman) 

 

  
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor John Cottier 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Dean Ward 
Councillor Hannah Westropp 
 
Cabinet Members present 
 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Cabinet Member for Waste Services and Climate 
Change) 
 
Officers 

 

Anne-Marie Coulthard (Assistant Director for Operations and Public Protection) 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer) 
Clova Townhill (Waste Team Manager) 
Heather Green (Licensing Team Leader) 
Serena Brown (Sustainability and Climate Change Officer) 
Amy Pryde (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
 
55. Comments from Members of the public 
 
Tim Harrison raised the following points in relation to agenda item 10, Government 
Consultation on Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Best Practice Guidance for 
Licensing Authorities: 
 

• The speaker was speaking on behalf of the drivers at Autocabs, owners of 
Grantham Taxis, Amber Taxis, Streetcars and CB Taxis.  

• The Council had followed a hackney carriage and private hire licensing policy 
under the guise of air quality management.  

3

Agenda Item 4



 

 

• A previous Member had been contacted on two occasions via email: one 
relating to the aspirations of the Council to improve vehicle emissions, the 
other relating to gratefulness to the Council that a new development in 
Spittlegate Heath would produce extra income from customers. Over 4000 
new houses would mean 7000 more unregulated vehicles, polluting the local 
air.  

• After the consultation, taxi companies were advised that it was too late for 
their input. 

• Another email was sent to a Cabinet Member, where this led to a falsehood 
aimed at misleading other Committee Members.  

• The trade had been through the worst 2 years due to covid.  

• Doubling the purchase cost of the tool of trade to a taxi driver would mean that 
buying a car two years newer than previously, meant a 100% increase in 
outlay, increase in fuel prices, licensing, insurance and running costs.  

• Unfair restriction of trade that is not applied to other traders in the local area.  

• Whether unfair pressure on trading on the homegrown taxi trade was 
considered by the Council.  

• Access to vehicles which single drivers can not afford to purchase, expenses 
would rise.  

• Whether an Equality Impact Assessment was conducted by the Council as it 
was a requirement in law.  

 
Neil Dumbleton raised the following points in relation to agenda item 10, Government 
Consultation on Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Best Practice Guidance for 
Licensing Authorities: 
 

• That the current hackney carriage and private hire licensing policy was not fit 
for purpose, because of the following reasons: 

 
- Method of consultation being flawed and virtually ineffective 
- In response to a Freedom of Information request to the Licensing 
Department regarding the number of letters and direct contact between 
independent taxi drivers was 409 emails.  
- Other methods to notify the taxi trade was notifications in two 
newspapers, an interview on BBC Radio Lincolnshire, a post on the Council’s 
website and laminated pieces of paper on taxi rank street lampposts.  

 

• That all potential changes should be directly in writing in a timely manner to 
the license holder.  

• That the consultation had little use of purpose it allowed the Council’s 
Licensing department to ‘tick a box’ and provide results gathered. 

• The content of the 2020 policy fails on 90% of objectives set out to achieve in 
section 1.2.  

• The trades had been established professionally and respectively before the 
policy was conceived.  

• The trade was yet to see evidence from the Council’s Licensing department of 
support or input. 

• When the trade would see action from the Council on driver safety.  

• The protection of the environment was a failed objective of the policy. 

4



 

 

• The trade of South Kesteven were being punished for Grantham town centre 
being an air quality management area.  

• That Grantham was 4.73 sq miles, meaning only 1.28% of the total area of 
South Kesteven. 57,344 households were in South Kesteven with an average 
of 1.3 vehicles per household, meaning approximately 74,547 vehicles of all 
ages. 368 hackney carriage and private hire vehicles in South Kesteven, 
which makes us 0.5% of the vehicles in the whole district.  

• Almost all of the hackney carriages were compliant with the euro five emission 
standard.  

• That the Council were seeing fit to and imposed a five-year age limit, an 
increased financial burden to under depleted members of the trade.  

• That the policy was not fit for purpose due to lack of respect and contempt 
shown by those who are given the responsibility of implementing the policy 
and those who question the actions and rationale.  

• That the 2020 policy be set aside, and a new policy be undertaken that 
involves contribution from all stakeholders and affected groups.  

 
56. Apologies for absence 
 
All Committee Members were present.  
 
57. Disclosure of Interests 
 
There were none.  
 
58. Action Notes from the meeting held on 30 November 2021 
 
Members AGREED the Action Notes of the meeting held on 30 November 2021, as a 
correct record.  
 
59. Action Notes from the meeting held on 8 March 2022 
 
Clarification was sought on the terminology of ‘Action Notes’ and ‘Minutes’. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that these were Minutes and the title would be consistent in 
the future.  
 
Members AGREED the Action Notes of the meeting held on 8 March 2022, as a 
correct record.  
 
60. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
One Member raised a query regarding previous agenda items and why they had not 
been included within the action sheet: 
 

• Green Flag Status at Council parks, including Jubilee Park 

• Water Refill Stations  
 
Feedback was requested on whether the Council had formally liaised with ‘Friends of 
Jubilee Park’.  

5



 

 

 
Further feedback was requested on the outcome of the ‘Water Refill Stations’ and 
whether the Council had consulted with towns within the district.  
 
ACTION: 
 
For an update to be provided on agenda items ‘Water Refill Stations’ and 
‘Green Flag Status at Council parks, including Jubilee Park’. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change confirmed that the action 
relating to the new recycling centre had been answered at the end of the previous 
meeting. 
 
A query was raised on where the relevant correspondence could be found on this 
matter.  
 
It was clarified that the answer to the action was available to view at point 53 of the 
minutes from the meeting held on 8 March 2022.  
 
 
 
61. Food Waste Collection Trial - Final Report 
 
The Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection presented the report on 
behalf of the Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change.  
 
The trial started in 2018 and was completed on behalf of the Lincolnshire Waste 
Partnership to establish the amount of food waste collected in a certain area of South 
Kesteven.  
 
The funding from Lincolnshire County Council ended in June 2020, then South 
Kesteven District Council continued the trial until March 2022.  
 
The results of the trial outlined: 
 

• That the scheme found an average of 26 tonnes per month of food waste 
being collected from the area in the beginning.  

• During the Covid-19 pandemic, the average tonnage collected reduced. 

• The amount of mixed dry recycling and residual waste increased significantly 
during the Covid-19 pandemic. 

• By the final 10 months of the trial, the average monthly amount collected had 
changed to 20 tonnes. 

• Participation was at 63% at the end of the trial. 

• As a conclusion of the scheme, on average, the Council collected an average 
of 1.7kilograms of food waste each week per participating household.  

• Food waste represented approximately 11% of the total waste produced. 

• Food waste collections increased the amount of waste recycled by 
approximately 10.5%. 

 

6



 

 

A survey of participants showed that most households agreed with the trial, however 
not everybody participated, reasons given included due to composting their food 
waste, producing only small amounts of food waste or some households felt they did 
not produce any food waste.  
 
The scheme was suspended in anticipation of DEFRA’s response to their 
consultation on the national roll-out of a food waste scheme, which would become 
mandatory for all local authorities. The response to the consultation was still awaited.  
 
One Member expressed disappointment over the popular scheme being suspended 
and the lack of budget to fund the continuation of the scheme.  
 
A query was raised on whether feedback had been received from the households 
that participated in the trial of the scheme.  
 
It was confirmed that towards the end of the trial, the Council wrote to all participants 
to thank them and provide information on the suspension. The Council did not 
receive any complaints about the closure of the trial. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change confirmed he had received two 
emails from participants of the trial, who expressed concerns over the closure of the 
scheme. A response was sent explaining background information on the decision of 
closure.   
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change highlighted unintended 
consequences as a result of waste collection schemes.  
 
One Member queried a comment made around food waste collection scheme 
increasing the overall carbon footprint.  
 
Another Member noted that 96% of participants thought the scheme was a 
successful and that the Council could explore overcoming the difficulties.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change outlined some potential options 
that may be feasible in the future.  
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Committee notes the results of the South Kesteven District Council 
Food Waste Collection Trial. 
 
62. Update on Environment Act - impact on Local Authority 
 
The Assistant Director for Operations and Public Protection provided the Committee 
with a presentation that outlined an update on The Environment Act 2021 and the 
impacts this had on the Council’s waste collection services.  
 
In summer 2021, DEFRA released three consultations relating to recycling and the 
disposal of waste. The Council responded to the consultations and the results were 
awaited on two of the three.  

7



 

 

 
The Committee were reminded of what the consultations included: 
 

• A framework for protecting and enhancing the natural environment through 
long-term, legally binding targets. 

• DEFRA required to set legally binding environmental targets by late 2022.  

• Main provisions relating to waste management 
- Improved consistency in recycling collections 

- Enhanced producer responsibility (EPR) 
- Deposit return schemes (DRS) 

• DEFRA consulted on proposals in summer 2021. 

• Results of consultations were expected early 2022. 

• EPR consultation response received – to be implemented in a phased manner 
from 2024. 

 
The consistency in recycling with the most significant implications for districts related 
to: 
 

• Free of charge fortnightly garden waste collections during growing season. 

• Separate weekly food waste collections would become mandatory for all 
households by 2023. 

• Core set of recyclables to be collected separately (glass, plastic, metal and 
paper/card) by 2023/24.  

• Business premises will also have to separate their waste for collection.  
 
The consultation response for Enhanced Producer Responsibility (EPR) was 
received on 26 March 2022: 
 

• Reforms to be implemented from 2024. 

• Producers to pay the costs of managing household packaging waste. 

• Payments to local authorities for collection of household packaging waste and 
“on the go” packaging disposed of in street bins (excludes littering). 

• Modulated fees to incentivise the use of recyclable packaging (from 2025 
instead of 2024). 

• Mandatory takeback scheme for the collection and recycling of fibre-based 
composite cups (disposable coffee cups). 

• Mandatory labelling of packaging for recyclability with a single labelling format. 

• Annual packaging waste recycling targets to 2030. 

• Appointment of a Scheme Administrator.  
 
One Member queried timescales of when the way waste is collected would change. It 
was suggested that the Council could encourage communities to home compost.  
 
Clarification was sought on the garden waste collection and when a decision would 
be made on whether the Council would be obliged to collect garden waste free of 
charge.  
 

8



 

 

A concern was made on what supermarkets and the industry were doing to reduce 
the amount of packaging used pre-consumer and whether the legislation supported 
this.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change highlighted that if the Council 
had to collect garden waste as a statutory service, it would be of an increased cost, 
which could be up to double the current cost. 
 
It was noted that figures were not specific, and the figures were just an estimate of 
the financial impact. More detailed, financial costings would be undertaken once the 
DEFRA response was published. It was highlighted that to implement The 
Environment Act could cost the Council up to £5m.  
 
A query was raised on whether the Council had any communication with central 
government on timescales around the consultation.  
 
It was confirmed that the consultation results were still awaited and this was a 
concern.  
 
ACTION: 
 
For the Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change to write a letter to 
DEFRA’s secretary of state to express the Council’s concerns about the 
outstanding consultation response.  
 
It was reiterated that home composting should be encouraged for the residents of 
South Kesteven.  
 
One Member noted that some residents may not have the time or willingness to 
compost. It was suggested that the Council could potentially find a way of 
composting it in-house.  
 
The Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection highlighted that the EPR 
element of the legislation related purely to household packaging waste and did not 
currently include the secondary packaging produced in shops themselves.  
 
It was confirmed that the Council had information on the website in relation to 
composting and were supporters of ‘Get Composting’ where residents can purchase 
composting bins. 
 
ACTION: 
 
For the Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change to encourage residents 
in South Kesteven by promoting composting via social media and in a version 
of SK Today.  
 
  
 
 

9



 

 

63. Climate Change Update 
 
The Sustainability and Climate Change Officer presented a report that provided the 
Committee with a brief update of items that had progressed since the last meeting.  
 
The Council had been working on a joint campaign in Lincolnshire around awareness 
of climate change which would be targeted towards residents and businesses within 
the district. A further update on the outcome of the campaign would be brought to a 
future meeting.  
 
It was highlighted that the Council were undertaking a review of the Council’s fleet of 
vehicles as part of the carbon reduction action plan. The current fleet of vehicles 
were responsible for 25% of the Council’s overall carbon footprint.  
 
The Council were also making progress on upgrades of lighting within the Guildhall 
Arts Centre to energy efficient LEDs, which are 60% more efficient that incandescent 
bulbs. 
 
The report included updates around the Council’s work around tree planting. All 
applicants for the ‘Emergency Tree Funding’ had been informed of deferral of the 
fund until June. Lincolnshire County Council confirmed that their consortium 
application for ‘Trees Call to Action Fund’ had been unsuccessful. 
 
The carbon footprint reporting for the 2021-22 financial year should be available for 
publishing in autumn 2022.    
 
One Member queried as to whether the Council were open to applications from other 
funding opportunities. 
 
It was confirmed that work was being explored regarding the ‘Urban Tree Challenge 
Fund’ and other funding opportunities for additional tree planting.  
 
Members expressed their disappointment over the funding being unsuccessful.  
 
The Sustainability and Climate Change Officer highlighted that the ‘Trees Call to 
Action Fund’ was a capacity building source of grant funding. The Council had 
submitted areas for the Treescapes funding to Lincolnshire County Council.  
 
The Chairman suggested that Lincolnshire County Councillors could communicate 
with Lincolnshire County Council to encourage applications to fund tree planting.  
 
A query was raised in relation to the ongoing programme of replacing streetlights with 
LEDs within the district and how many had been done at present time and whether a 
financial benefit had been seen.  
 
A further query was raised on whether the ‘Green Homes Grant Local Authority 
Delivery Scheme, Phase 2 (LAD2)’ had been completed or was still undergoing.  
 
The Sustainability and Climate Change Officer confirmed that the ongoing 
programme of streetlight replacements had begun at the end of 2021.  

10



 

 

 
ACTION: 
 
For the Sustainability and Climate Change Officer to liaise with the relevant 
colleagues and provide the Committee an update via email on the current 
number of completions of replacing streetlights with LEDs. 
 
It was confirmed that the ‘Green Homes Grant’ funding had received a deadline 
extension for completion due to supply chain issues with availability of contractors 
and equipment. The programme was continuing, and the Council were utilising as 
much of the funding as possible.  
 
A query was also raised in relation to the communal areas in some Council 
properties regarding the Council’s operational carbon footprint.  
 
It was highlighted that these properties were included in the Council’s carbon 
footprint and were part of the Council’s carbon action plan. There had been several 
works undergoing around the district in communal areas: For example, Manor Court 
in Bourne had received an upgraded heating system.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change noted that the Council had 
submitted an ambitious bid to the Woodland Trust which was funding for a Tree 
Officer Strategy post for 18 months. The Council had been informed that without an 
agreed tree strategy, receiving funding for projects would be less likely.  
 
It was noted that the grant funding allocated to South Kesteven District Council under 
the Sustainable Warmth Competition was around £1.2m and the average cost per 
property of upgrades ranged between £5,000 to a maximum of £25,000 for some 
properties.  
 
Other Council’s had implemented pilot schemes relating to contracting waste to a 
company, electrified fleets and hydrogen powered freighters.  
 
AGREED: 
 
Notes the updates regarding climate change and carbon emissions reduction 
across areas of South Kesteven District Council.   
 
64. Government Consultation on the Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing 

Best Practice Guidance for Licensing Authorities 
 
Councillor Dean Ward declared that he was married to a taxi driver and did not take 
part in the debate or vote. 
 
The Licensing Team Leader provided the Committee with a presentation on behalf of 
the Cabinet Member for Governance and Licensing.   
 
The first best practice guidance was issued in 2006. The Department for Transport 
had updated the guidance document to reflect new ways of working and were now 
seeking information and consultation of the new document. The consultation enables 

11



 

 

interested parties including the public, operators, drivers and representative bodies to 
respond. The Consultation was due to close on the 20 June 2022.  
 
Consultation questions related to the following topics: 
 

• Accessibility 

• Enforcing the Licensing Regime 

• Driver Licensing  

• Vehicle Licensing 

• Taxi rank provision 

• Annexes: Model bylaws for Hackney Carriages, sample notices between taxi 
driver or PHV driver and passenger, staying safe – guidance for taxi drivers, 
staying safe – guidance for PHV trade and useful questions when assessing 
taxi quantity controls.  

  
Clarification was sought on the difference between two questions asked as part of 
the consultation relating to Enforcing the Licensing Regime.  
 
It was confirmed that one question related to the drivers record and the points on 
their license. The other question related to operators for private hire vehicles.  
 
It was highlighted that the time difference of points incurred to be on the records 
between an operator and a driver could be due to the duration of license: a taxi driver 
license was issued for 3 years, and an operator license was issued for 5 years.  
 
A query was raised on how the Council would enforce drivers to evidence a higher 
degree of driving ability than required for private motorists.  
 
The Licensing Team Leader confirmed that the Council currently requires a medical, 
a test of proficiency of spoken English and driving knowledge of the local area. It was 
noted that drivers are also required to undertake safeguarding training.  
 
Concern was raised on the proposed answers to questions relating to car roof signs 
and private hire operator signage.  
 
Clarification was provided that the Council policy did not currently insist on the 
display of the operator name on the outside of the vehicle.  
 
Further clarification was provided to the Committee on question 21.  
 
It was confirmed that hackney carriage vehicles have roof lights that can be turned 
on and off due to being hailed. A private hire vehicle does not have a roof light due to 
the vehicles not being hailed and being pre-booked.  
 
The current policy stated that private hire vehicles may use other ways of displaying 
operator details but were not permitted to use a roof light.  
 
The Chairman suggested that a comment be added to the response of the 
consultation that private hire vehicles could use signs to identify themselves as a pre-
booked private hire vehicle rather than a hackney carriage vehicle.  

12



 

 

 
One Member highlighted that some operators would text/email the individual who has 
booked the taxi with the name of the driver and the registration number plate.  
 
General comments outlined that were to be added to the consultation response: 
 

• Accessibility: Limited definition of assistance dogs; potentially insufficient to 
comply with S168-70 (Assistance Dogs in Taxis) of the Equality Act 2010.  

• Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licensing: The fit and proper test for an 
Operator should reference the requirements of the Department for Transport 
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Standards. The draft best practice guidance 
only refers to checks of Companies House information.  

• Vehicles Licensing & Environmental Considerations: to ensure a consistent 
approach to the transition towards zero emissions, there would be benefit in 
setting a national standard and phased timescale to support this.  

• Consideration of the provision of Government funding to support the trade in 
the transition.  
 

The Chairman raised a concern in relation to accessibility and whether the 
consultation included the accessibility of wheelchair users.  
 
Queries were raised on whether it was a requirement for drivers to display a 
photograph and registration inside the taxi.  
 
The Licensing Team Leader confirmed that the Council issue driver badges with a 
photograph every three years, and they should be worn by the driver as set out in the 
policy. Vehicle identification plates could be found on the back of vehicles.  
 
The policy cycle was 5 years and would be due for review in April 2026. 
 
The Assistant Director for Operations and Public Protection confirmed that comments 
made could result in potential changes to the policy. Once the Department for 
Transport response to the consultation had been received, the policy would be re-
reviewed to take account of any changes. The policy was not a statutory requirement 
and local choice; therefore, no review timescale was set in law.  
 
AGREED: 
 
Agrees the response to the Department for Transport Consultation on the Taxi 
& Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Best Practice Guidance for Licensing 
Authorities, with or without amendments. 
 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED that the Committee recommends that 
Cabinet urgently reviews the vehicle age at first registration aspect of the Council’s 
taxi and private hire vehicle licensing policy, paying special regard to the vehicle age 
five-year rule.  
 
 

13



 

 

65. Draft Policy for the provision of litter bins 
 
The Assistant Director for Operations and Public Protection presented the report on 
behalf of the Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change.  
 
An audit of the litter bins across the district had been carried out and 608 litter bins 
were recorded and had been provided and serviced by the Council.  
 
The draft policy for the provision of litter bins would seek to clarify responsibilities 
where Parish/Town Councils had provided litter bins. The policy also suggested a 
criteria that would be applied when assessing a location for a new litter bin request.  
 
Clarification was sought on the number breakdown of the 608 bins and how many 
were maintained by parishes, towns or the districts.  
 
It was confirmed that the Council were aware of the number of bins that are emptied, 
however the original provision of some bins were historic, therefore, accurate 
information could not be provided on the original ownership. 
 
There had been no proposal within the policy to change the ownership of any of the 
bins.  
 
One Member queried as to whether the policy would enable parishes to provide and 
get bins emptied or whether problems could occur. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change confirmed that set criteria for 
the provision of bins had been ad-hoc. The policy would not affect existing bins and 
would only affect when replacing bins and capacity would be assessed upon location.  
 
It was suggested that the policy may eventually reduce the number of bins in town to 
relocate them to parishes and the outside of towns.  
 
It was confirmed that the policy should not affect the collection or maintenance of 
bins.  
 
A concern was raised on the lack of an environmental impact assessment section of 
the report.  
 
The Assistant Director for Operations and Public Protection confirmed that an 
equality impact assessment was attached within the report.  
 
A Member confirmed the environmental impact assessment was present on page 
103, section 12 of the agenda report pack.  
 
A query was raised on whether the current 608 litter bins had been mapped and 
whether any parishes lacked litter bins.  
 
It was confirmed that the current bins were predominantly in the town centres, and 
they were currently not mapped at present time. The locations could become part of 
the Council’s electronic mapping system in the future.  

14



 

 

 
If a request was sent to the Council, the policy criteria would be used to assess the 
need for the litter bin.  
 
AGREED: 
 

1. Considers the draft Policy for the Provision of Litter Bins and agrees it, 
with or without amendments.  

 
2. Recommends to Cabinet that the draft policy is suitable for adoption. 
 
 
66. Work Programme 2021-22 
 
Members noted the Work Programme for 2021-22. 
 
Members requested that the following items be added to the Work Programme: 
 

• Progress Update on the Depot Project  

• Climate Change Action Group meeting update  
 
The Chairman requested for Committee Members to be in contact in relation to future 
agenda items.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change notified the Committee that a 
‘Climate Change Action Group’ meeting was being held in early June 2022. An 
update would be brought to the Committee after each meeting of the ‘Climate 
Change Action Group’.  
 
 
67. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 
There were none.  
 
68. Close of meeting 
 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 12:15.  
 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



Action Sheet 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Actions from meeting of 10 May 2022 

Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

60 Updates from 
the previous 
meeting 

For an update to be provided on 
agenda items ‘Water Refill Stations’ 
and ‘Green Flag Status at Council 
parks, including Jubilee Park’. 

Parks Project Officer  
 
 
 

Wyndham and Dysart 
Park were subject to a 
formal Green Flag 
assessment during the 
28th April. For 2022 
Queen Elizabeth Park 
will be subject to a 
“mystery shop” Green 
Flag assessment.  
The assessment results 
for all 3 of the above 
mentioned parks will 
issued late July 2022. 
 
Update to be provided 
on Water Refill stations 
at the meeting.  

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62 Update on 
Environment 
Act - impact on 
Local Authority 

For the Cabinet Member for Waste 
and Climate Change to write a letter 
to DEFRA’s secretary of state to 
express the Council’s concerns 
about the outstanding consultation 
response. 
 
For the Cabinet Member for Waste 
and Climate Change to encourage 

Cabinet Member for Waste 
Services and Climate 
Change 
 
 
 
 

Letter sent by Cabinet 
Member on Monday 30th 
May.  
 

Complete 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

17

A
genda Item

 5



Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

residents in South Kesteven by 
promoting composting via social 
media and in a version of SK Today. 

Cabinet Member for Waste 
Services and Climate 
Change 

63 Climate 
Change 
Update  

For the Sustainability and Climate 
Change Officer to liaise with the 
relevant colleagues and provide the 
Committee an update via email on 
the current number of completions 
of replacing streetlights with LEDs. 

Sustainability and Climate 
Change Officer 

Email sent to Committee 
members on 22 June 
2022.  

 

 

18



 

 

 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
05 July 2022 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2021/22 
Year-End Report. 

This year-end update report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance against the 
Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the year of 2021/22. 
 
As part of the ongoing review cycle all KPIs will be reviewed at the end of Q2 2022/23 to account 
for any changes that need to be made to the existing measures as well as any additions or 
removals that are deemed necessary. 

 

 

Report Author 

Robert Warburton, Performance Analyst 

  Robert.Warburton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

A high performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Debbie Roberts, Organisational Development 
Manager 

20 June 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive  20 June 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, Leader of the Council  23 June 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Note the contents of the 2021/22 year-end performance report. 

2. Members to consider if any concerns highlighted by the report require additional 
investigation to be added to the work programme. 

 

19

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 Background 

1.1 The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 October 

2020. It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets 

would be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny committee, which would retain 

oversight of the performance management arrangements at a strategic level. These 

actions and indicators were presented to this committee and agreed on 17 November 

2020. 

1.2 The Mid-Year report for 2021/22 was presented to the Committee on 30 November 2021 

and outlined the performance against the Corporate Plan for the financial year to date and 

included the first annual review of all Corporate KPIs and contained recommendations for 

changes, additions, and removals.  

1.3 This report builds on these historical reports to provide an update on performance to the 

end of the 2021/22 financial year. It incorporates the changes recommended by the last 

KPI review to outline areas of the council’s performance which are successful and to 

advise where challenges may lay. From these results this committee may need to pay 

additional attention either through questions to senior officers during the session or more 

detailed investigations to be added to the committee work programme. 

1.4 A further review of actions is due to be carried out to coincide with the Quarter 2 report. 

2 Corporate Plan Actions – Year-End Update 

2.1 Appendix 1 outlines the overall performance against the 6 actions, as well as specific 

performance against the 19 sub measures contained within those. Specific commentary is 

provided for each action, but the summary is as follows:  

1. 3 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which are on or above 

target as planned.  

2. 3 actions are rated as Amber, these are those off target by less than 10% 

or where milestone achievement is delayed but with resolution in place to 

be achieved within a reasonable timeframe.  

3. 0 actions are rated Red. These are those falling significantly below target 

or overdue with no specific resolution date planned. 

2.2 There have been no areas of significant under performance identified in this report, this is 

a continuation of the good performance reported in the Mid-year report which likewise had 

0 actions rated as Red. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 Regular reporting on agreed actions and measures is to be welcomed from a governance 

point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on performance. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

 

20



 

 
 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting from this 

report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as required. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 No significant risks have been identified. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 No significant implications have been identified. 

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

8.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the council’s carbon emissions 

or the carbon emissions of the wider district. However, the Council’s carbon emissions and 

performance against targeted reductions are included in the Year End version of this 

report.  

8.2 More detailed information on carbon impact of individual projects or activities is outlined 

within the relevant project documentation or service plans. 

9 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators Year-End Update 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/A 

Previously Considered by: Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

30 November 2021 

Final Decision date   N/A 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϯ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

�ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�dĂƌŐĞƚƐ 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�EŽ͗ �ĐƟŽŶ͗ ^ƚĂƚƵƐ͗ 

$�FOHDQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�HQYLURQPHQW�� 
&RQWLQXH�WR�LQQRYDWH�RXU�DSSURDFK�WR�ZDVWH�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�EXLOG�RQ�RXU�

VWUHQJWKV�DQG�PD[LPLVH�FRPPHUFLDO�DQG�RWKHU�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�� 

 

$�FOHDQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�HQYLURQPHQW�� 
0DLQWDLQ�DQG�HQKDQFH�RXU�JUHHQ�DUHDV�DFURVV�WKH�'LVWULFW��DLPLQJ�WR�VHFXUH�
*UHHQ�)ODJ�VWDWXV�IRU�4XHHQ�(OL]DEHWK�3DUN��'\VDUW�3DUN�DQG�RWKHU�UHOHYDQW�

DUHDV�� 

 

$�FOHDQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�HQYLURQPHQW�� 
:RUN�SURDFWLYHO\�ZLWK�(QYLURQPHQW�6.�WR�GHOLYHU�KLJK�TXDOLW\�VHUYLFHV�DQG�

PD[LPLVH�FRPPHUFLDO�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�� 

 

$�FOHDQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�HQYLURQPHQW�� 
:RUN�ZLWK�WKH�/LQFROQVKLUH�:DVWH�3DUWQHUVKLS�WR�UHGXFH�ZDVWH�DQG�IXUWKHU�

LPSURYH�UHF\FOLQJ�� 

 

$�FOHDQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�HQYLURQPHQW�� 
5HFRJQLVH�WKH�FKDQJHV�LQ�HQYLURQPHQWDOO\�IULHQGO\�PRGHV�RI�WUDQVSRUW�DQG�

VHHN�WR�ZRUN�ZLWK�RWKHUV�WR�DGDSW�UHTXLUHG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�� 

 

$�FOHDQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�HQYLURQPHQW�� %XLOG�D�QHZ��PRGHUQ�GHSRW�ZKLFK�LV�ILW�IRU�WKH�IXWXUH�� 

 

23

A
ppendix 1



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϰ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

.3,�,'�� $�&OHDQ�	�6XVWDLQDEOH�(QYLURQPHQW�� 

6WDWXV�� 
4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

        

$FWLRQ�� 
&RQWLQXH�WR�LQQRYDWH�RXU�DSSURDFK�WR�ZDVWH�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�EXLOG�RQ�RXU�VWUHQJWKV�DQG�PD[LPLVH�FRPPHUFLDO�DQG�RWKHU����������

RSSRUWXQLWLHV�� 

5HVSRQVLEOH�3RVW�� 
7KH�&DELQHW�0HPEHU�IRU�:DVWH�	�&OLPDWH�&KDQJH����������������������������������������

DQG�'HSXW\�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�� 
0HDVXUHG�� 4XDUWHUO\ 

:KDW�GRHV�6XFFHVV�/RRN�
/LNH�� 

&RQWLQXLQJ�WR�GHYHORS�RXU�RIIHU�EH\RQG�VWDWXWRU\�PLQLPXPV�� 

0HDVXUH� 7DUJHW� 7DUJHW�3HULRG� $FKLHYHG� 
6WDWXV�+LVWRU\ 

4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

1XPEHU�RI�JDUGHQ�ZDVWH�
ELQV�� 

������ <HDU�(QG ������  
        

��*URZWK��*DUGHQ�:DVWH�
6HUYLFH� 

���JURZWK�LQ�
\HDU 

4XDUWHUO\ ����� 
    

&RPPHUFLDO�ZDVWH�����������
FXVWRPHUV� 

%DVHOLQH�IRU�
JURZWK 

4XDUWHUO\ ��� 
    

&RPPHQWDU\��� 

&RPPHUFLDO�:DVWH�%UHDNGRZQ������FXVWRPHUV�KDYH�ELQV�����KDYH�MXVW�EDJV�DQG�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ����XVH�ERWK�� 

 

&XUUHQW�����
6WDWXV� 

4��������� 24



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϱ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

.3,�,'�� $�&OHDQ�	�6XVWDLQDEOH�(QYLURQPHQW�� 

6WDWXV�� 
4��������� 4���������� 

 �   �  

$FWLRQ�� 0DLQWDLQ�DQG�HQKDQFH�RXU�JUHHQ�DUHDV�DFURVV�WKH�'LVWULFW��DLPLQJ�WR�VHFXUH�*UHHQ�)ODJ�VWDWXV�IRU�4XHHQ�(OL]DEHWK�3DUN��'\VDUW�

5HVSRQVLEOH�3RVW�� 7KH�&DELQHW�0HPEHU�IRU�+RXVLQJ�	�3URSHUW\�DQG�'LUHFWRU�RI�*URZWK�	�&XOWXUH� 0HDVXUHG�� $QQXDO 

:KDW�GRHV�6XFFHVV�/RRN�
/LNH�� 

3XEOLF�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�� 

0HDVXUH� 7DUJHW� 7DUJHW�3HULRG� $FKLHYHG� 
4��������� 4���������� 

3XEOLF�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�IURP����
YLVLWRUV��:\QGKDP��3DUN� 

���� $QQXDO  ��� 
 �   �  

3XEOLF�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�IURP�����
YLVLWRUV��4XHHQ�(OL]DEHWK�

���� $QQXDO ��� 
  

*UHHQ�)ODJ�VWDWXV� 

0DLQWDLQ�*UHHQ�)ODJ�
VWDWXV�IRU�:\QGKDP�
3DUN�DQG�VHFXUH�
*UHHQ�)ODJ�VWDWXV�IRU�
4XHHQ�(OL]DEHWK�3DUN�� 

$QQXDO $FKLHYHG 

  
&RPPHQWDU\���7KH�SRVVLEOH�UHDVRQ�IRU�VOLSSDJH�RQ�SXEOLF�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�IRU�4XHHQ�(OL]DEHWK�3DUN�LV�GXH�WR�WKH�&RYLG�WHVW�IDFLOLW\�SUHYHQWLQJ�XVH�
RI�WKH�FDU�SDUN��&RYLG�LQ�JHQHUDO�PD\�KDYH�LQIOXHQFHG�UHVXOWV� 

,Q������*UHHQ�+HULWDJH�DFFUHGLWDWLRQ�ZDV�DOVR�VHFXUHG�IRU�:\QGKDP�3DUN��*UHHQ�IODJ�VWDWXV�DZDUGHG�WR�ERWK�:\QGKDP�DQG�4XHHQ�(OL]DEHWK�
3DUNV�������*UHHQ�)ODJ�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�DQQRXQFHG�LQ�2FWREHU�-�DOO���IRUPDO�SDUNV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�IRU�DVVHVVPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�DLP�WR�DFKLHYH�JUHHQ�
IODJ�VWDWXV�DW�'\VDUW�3DUN�� 

6WDWXV�+LVWRU\� 

25



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϲ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

.3,�,'�� $�&OHDQ�	�6XVWDLQDEOH�(QYLURQPHQW�� 

6WDWXV�� 
4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

        

$FWLRQ�� :RUN�SURDFWLYHO\�ZLWK�(QYLURQPHQW�6.�WR�GHOLYHU�KLJK�TXDOLW\�VHUYLFHV�DQG�UXQ�LQ�D�ILQDQFLDOO\�VXVWDLQDEOH�ZD\��� 

5HVSRQVLEOH�3RVW�� 7KH�&DELQHW�0HPEHU�IRU�+RXVLQJ�	�3URSHUW\�DQG�'LUHFWRU�RI�*URZWK�	�&XOWXUH� 0HDVXUHG�� 4XDUWHUO\ 

:KDW�GRHV�6XFFHVV�/RRN�
/LNH�� 

+LJK�SHUIRUPLQJ�DQG�FRPPHUFLDOO\�VXFFHVVIXO�FRPSDQ\�� 

0HDVXUH� 7DUJHW� 7DUJHW�3HULRG� $FKLHYHG� 
6WDWXV�+LVWRU\ 

4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

&OLHQW�VLGH�UHSRUWLQJ�FULWHULD 7%& 4XDUWHUO\  - 
        

&RPPHQWDU\���$�UHYLVHG�JURXQGV�PDLQWHQDQFH�VSHFLILFDWLRQ�DQG�FRQWUDFW�LV�LQ�GHYHORSPHQW��,Q�WKH�LQWHULP�PRQWKO\�PRQLWRULQJ�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�
LV�LQ�SODFH�RQ�DQ�RQJRLQJ�EDVLV��WKH�VSHFLILFV�RI�WKLV�PHDVXUH�ZLOO�EH�GHYHORSHG�IXUWKHU�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�QHZ�VSHFLILFDWLRQ� 

7KLV�DFWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�KLJKOLJKWHG�IRU�IXUWKHU�DWWHQWLRQ�LQ�WKH�DQQXDO�UHYLHZ�WDNLQJ�SODFH�LQ�2FWREHU������� 

&XUUHQW�
6WDWXV� 

4��������� 26



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϳ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

.3,�,'�� $�&OHDQ�	�6XVWDLQDEOH�(QYLURQPHQW�� 

6WDWXV�� 
4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

        

$FWLRQ�� :RUN�ZLWK�WKH�/LQFROQVKLUH�:DVWH�3DUWQHUVKLS�WR�UHGXFH�ZDVWH�DQG�IXUWKHU�LPSURYH�UHF\FOLQJ�� 

5HVSRQVLEOH�3RVW�� 
7KH�&DELQHW�0HPEHU�IRU�:DVWH�	�&OLPDWH�&KDQJH�DQG�'HSXW\�&KLHI�����������

([HFXWLYH�� 
0HDVXUHG�� 4XDUWHUO\ 

:KDW�GRHV�6XFFHVV�/RRN�
/LNH�� 

/:3�ZLGH�VXFFHVV�LQ�LPSURYLQJ�/LQFROQVKLUH
V�ZDVWH�SHUIRUPDQFH�� 

0HDVXUH� 7DUJHW� 7DUJHW�3HULRG� $FKLHYHG� 
6WDWXV�+LVWRU\ 

4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

5HVLGXDO�ZDVWH�WRQQHV�SHU�
�����KRXVHKROGV�� 

����W������
KRXVHKROGV 

4XDUWHUO\ ����  
        

&RQWULEXWLRQ�WR�LQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�
SURSRUWLRQ�RI�UHF\FOLQJ��DV�VHW�

RXW�LQ�WKH�/:3�VWUDWHJ\�� 
!����� <HDU�(QG ������ 

    

5HGXFHG�QRQ-WDUJHW�UHF\FODEOH�
PDWHULDOV�LQ�WKH�UHF\FOLQJ�

VWUHDP�� 
���� <HDU�(QG ����� 

    
&RPPHQWDU\��� 

7KH�SURSRUWLRQ�RI�QRQ-UHF\FODEOH�PDWHULDOV�DUH�XQGHU�WKH�WDUJHWHG�OLPLW�IRU�4����+RZHYHU��WKLV�PD\�EH�WKH�UHVXOW�RI�D�FKDQJH�LQ�PHWKRGV�LQVWLJDWHG�E\�������
/LQFROQVKLUH�&RXQW\�&RXQFLO�IROORZLQJ�RYHU�WKH�DFFXUDF\�RI�WKH�VDPSOLQJ�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�WKHLU�FRQWUDFWRU��&RQWLQXHG�SURJUHVV�ZLWK�UHGXFLQJ�WKLV�ILJXUH�LV�����
H[SHFWHG�� 

)ROORZLQJ�WKH�&RYLG-���UHF\FOLQJ�DQG�ZDVWH�GLVSRVDO�KDELWV�DUH�JUDGXDOO\�UHWXUQLQJ�WR�QRUPDO��5HVLGXDO�:DVWH�SHU�+RXVHKROG�ILJXUHV�QRZ�ZLWKLQ�WDUJHW�����
YROXPH�IRU�4XDUWHU���DQG�WKH�UHF\FOLQJ�SURSRUWLRQ�\HDU�WR�GDWH�ILJXUH�LV�ZLWKLQ�VWDWLVWLFDO�FRQILGHQFH�OLPLWV�� 

7KH�/LQFROQVKLUH�:DVWH�3DUWQHUVKLS�FRQWLQXH�WR�ZRUN�WRJHWKHU�WR�VHHN�WR�SURPRWH�WKH�SULQFLSOHV�RI�WKH�ZDVWH�KLHUDUFK\�WR�µUHGXFH��UHXVH��UHF\FOH�DQG��������
UHFRYHU��HQHUJ\�IURP�ZDVWH�¶� �$GGLWLRQDOO\�FXUUHQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�LV�XQGHUSLQQHG�E\�VWURQJ�JUHHQ�ZDVWH�FROOHFWLRQ�SHUIRUPDQFH�ZKLFK�LV�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR��������
FRQWLQXH�LQWR�WKH�QHZ�\HDU� 

&XUUHQW�����

4��������� 

27



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϴ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

.3,�,'�� $�&OHDQ�	�6XVWDLQDEOH�(QYLURQPHQW�� 

6WDWXV�� 
4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

        

$FWLRQ�� 5HFRJQLVH�WKH�FKDQJHV�LQ�HQYLURQPHQWDOO\�IULHQGO\�PRGHV�RI�WUDQVSRUW�DQG�VHHN�WR�ZRUN�ZLWK�RWKHUV�WR�DGDSW�UHTXLUHG��������������

5HVSRQVLEOH�3RVW�� 
7KH�&DELQHW�0HPEHU�IRU�:DVWH�	�&OLPDWH�&KDQJH�DQG�'LUHFWRU�RI�+RXVLQJ�	�

3URSHUW\ 
0HDVXUHG�� 4XDUWHUO\ 

:KDW�GRHV�6XFFHVV�/RRN�
/LNH�� 

8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�GHPDQG�IRU�(OHFWULF�9HKLFOH�&KDUJLQJ�3RLQWV�DQG�RWKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�� 

0HDVXUH� 7DUJHW� 7DUJHW�3HULRG� $FKLHYHG� 
6WDWXV�+LVWRU\ 

4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 
1XPEHU�RI�PLOHV�JHQHUDWHG ������ 4XDUWHUO\  ������         

&DUERQ�7RQQHV�VDYHG ��7RQQHV 4XDUWHUO\ ���     

&RPPHQWDU\��� 

1XPEHU�RI�PLOHV�JHQHUDWHG�LV�DQ�DSSUR[LPDWH�ILJXUH�EDVHG�RQ�HQHUJ\�XVH�IURP�WZHOYH�HOHFWULF�YHKLFOH�FKDUJH�SRLQWV�LQ�6RXWK�.HVWHYHQ�'LVWULFW�
&RXQFLO�FDU�SDUNV��7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�D�GLVWLQFW�LQFUHDVH�LQ�PLOHV�WUDYHOOHG�LQ�WKLV�UHSRUWLQJ�\HDU��UHODWLQJ�WR�LQFUHDVHG�XSWDNH�RI�(9&3V�DQG�UH�
PRYDO�RI�WUDYHO�UHVWULFWLRQV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�FRYLG-���SDQGHPLF� 

7KH�FDUERQ�VDYHG�UHODWHV�WR�PLOHV�WUDYHOOHG�ZKLFK�ZRXOG�RWKHUZLVH�EH�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�D�SHWURO�RU�GLHVHO�YHKLFOH��DQG�DUH�QRW�LQFOXGHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�
&RXQFLO
V�RSHUDWLRQDO�FDUERQ�IRRWSULQW��7KLV�UHSRUWLQJ�\HDU�VHHV�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FDUERQ�VDYHG�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�LQFUHDVH�LQ�PLOHV�WUDYHOOHG� 

7KH�RYHUDOO�XSWDNH�UHPDLQV�ORZ�DFURVV�WZHOYH�HOHFWULF�YHKLFOH�FKDUJH�SRLQWV�LQ�6RXWK�.HVWHYHQ�'LVWULFW�&RXQFLO�FDU�SDUNV��:H�FRQWLQXH�WR�PRQL�
WRU�XSWDNH�FORVHO\�WR�XQGHUVWDQG�FKDQJH�LQ�GHPDQG�IRU�WKHVH�IDFLOLWLHV� 

&XUUHQW�����

4��������� 

&KDUJLQJ�3RLQW�8WLOLVDWLRQ�
3HUFHQWDJH 

��� 4XDUWHUO\ ����� 
    

28



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϵ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�<ĞǇ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ϮϬϮϭͬϮϮ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�-�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ 

.3,�,'�� $�&OHDQ�	�6XVWDLQDEOH�(QYLURQPHQW�� 

6WDWXV�� 
4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 

        

$FWLRQ�� %XLOG�D�QHZ��PRGHUQ�GHSRW�ZKLFK�LV�ILW�IRU�WKH�IXWXUH�� 

5HVSRQVLEOH�3RVW�� 7KH�&DELQHW�0HPEHU�IRU�+RXVLQJ�	�3URSHUW\�DQG�&KLHI�)LQDQFH�2IILFHU� 0HDVXUHG�� 4XDUWHUO\ 

:KDW�GRHV�6XFFHVV�/RRN�
/LNH�� 

'HOLYHU\�RI�D�QHZ�GHSRW�� 

0HDVXUH� 7DUJHW� 7DUJHW�3HULRG� $FKLHYHG� 
6WDWXV�+LVWRU\ 

4��������� 4��������� 4��������� 
'HVLJQ�DQG�FRVWV�DSSURYDO 4��������� <HDU�(QG 4���������          

%XGJHW�DSSURYDO 4��������� <HDU�(QG 1R     
3ODQQLQJ�DSSOLFDWLRQ��������

VXEPLVVLRQ�DQG�DSSURYDO 
4��������� <HDU�(QG 2Q�7DUJHW 

    

3URFXUHPHQW 4��������� <HDU�(QG 
'HSHQGHQW�RQ�

DERYH�     

&RQVWUXFWLRQ�FRPPHQFHG 4��������� <HDU�(QG 
'HSHQGHQW�RQ�

DERYH�     

&RQVWUXFWLRQ�&RPSOHWLRQ ������� <HDU�(QG 
'HSHQGHQW�RQ�

DERYH�     
&RPPHQWDU\���$�GHVLJQ�WHDP�KDYH�EHHQ�DSSRLQWHG�E\�WKH�&RXQFLO�DQG�KDYH�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�DW�WKH�OD\RXWV�IRU�WKH�SURSRVHG�VLWH�DW�7XUQSLNH�
&ORVH��)HDVLELOLW\�UHSRUWV�DQG�FRQFHSWV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRVWHG�DQG�DQ�RSWLRQV�DSSUDLVDO�FRPSOHWHG��7KH�SURMHFW�LV�QRZ�DW�5,%$�6WDJH���DQG�GHWDLOHG�
GHVLJQV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRPPHQFHG�DQG�WKH�DLP�LV�IRU�WKH�SODQQLQJ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�VLWH�EH�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�$XWXPQ�������3UH-DSSOLFDWLRQ�PHHWLQJV�
KDYH�EHJXQ�ZLWK�WKH�SODQQLQJ�GHSDUWPHQW�� 

,W�LV�SURSRVHG�WKDW�DQ�HQDEOLQJ�FRQWUDFW�IRU�WKH�FLYLOV�ZRUNV�UHTXLUHG�WR�UHPHGLDWH�WKH�7XUQSLNH�&ORVH�VLWH�VKRXOG�EH�LQYHVWLJDWHG�IXUWKHU�WR�KDYH�D�
VLWH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�ZRUNV�FRPSOHWHG�SULRU�WR�DQ\�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RQ�WKH�VLWH��&RVWV�DUH�EHLQJ�VRXJKW�IRU�WKHVH�ZRUNV��'HWDLOHG�UHSRUWV�ZLOO�EH�SUHVHQWHG�
WR�WKH�&RPPLWWHH�DW�WKHLU�QH[W�PHHWLQJ�� 

&XUUHQW�����
6WDWXV� 

4��������� 

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
5th July 2022 

Report of: Councillor Mark Whittington 

  Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change 

         
  

 

Progress update on climate change and carbon 
reduction projects 

This report aims to provide a short update on workstreams impacting on South Kesteven District 
Council’s climate change and carbon reduction ambitions. 

 

 

Report Author 

Serena Brown, Sustainability and Climate Change Officer 

 
 01476 406125 

  Serena.brown@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

A Clean and Sustainable 
Environment  

Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Gareth Dawkins, Assets and Estates Manager 21 June 2022 

Approved by: Andrew Cotton, Director – Housing and Property 23 June 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Mark Whittington, Cabinet Member for 
Waste and Climate Change 

27 June 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the updates regarding climate change and carbon emissions reduction 
across areas of South Kesteven District Council.  

 

31

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Climate Action Group 

1.1.1 The Climate Action Group met on 7th June 2022 to discuss a number of items, including: 

- Updated Terms of Reference for the group confirming meeting frequency 

- Consideration of paperless Committee meetings  

- Update on vehicle fleet review supported by the Energy Saving Trust 

- Draft workplan for the group 

1.2 Sustainable Warmth competition 

1.2.1 The Council has been allocated a capital budget of £1,245,000 to deliver energy efficiency 

upgrades via the Sustainable Warmth fund, with an additional 10% allocation for 

administration and ancillary costs. The focus of funding is to primarily low-income owner 

occupied and private rented sector properties. The delivery timescale for this is currently 

up to March 2023. 

1.2.2 The scheme has a focus on alleviating fuel poverty in households, by improving the 

energy efficiency of homes and thereby reducing the cost of utility bills, whilst contributing 

to national net-zero carbon targets and supporting low-income households in the transition 

to low carbon heating. Eligible properties will receive such energy upgrade measures as 

cavity, wall or loft insulation, external wall insulation, solar PV panels, and low-carbon 

heating upgrades. The scheme is being delivered as a consortium between the councils of 

City of Lincoln, West Lindsey, North Kesteven and South Kesteven, who each have 

allocations of funding to deliver to eligible residents.  

1.2.3 The Sustainable Warmth funding is targeted towards households that meet the criteria of 

being both low-income and with poor energy efficiency. This is defined under scheme 

criteria as having an annual household income of less that £30,000, and the property 

having an energy performance certificate of D, E, F or G.  

1.2.4 This scheme has now been launched for South Kesteven residents, under the banner of 

the “Home Energy Upgrade Scheme”. Marketing is now live, with updates published on 

the Council’s webpages, and residents are coming forward for assessment. Current 

expectations are that the funding allocation will be able to deliver a maximum of 50-60 

energy efficiency upgrades in the district.  

1.2.5 Other sources of grant funding and support are being explored for future decarbonisation 

work across Council assets.  

1.3 Other updates 

1.3.1 The Council’s work on upgrading the stock of just under 4000 streetlights to LEDs is 

progressing. Since installations commenced in October 2021, 200 units from 8W to 25W 

have been upgraded to the end of May 2022. The majority of upgrades have taken place 

in Grantham, Great Gonerby and Allington. All upgraded lights have a dimming schedule 

which sees a 50% reduction in lighting intensity between the hours of midnight and 6am. It 

is expected approximately another 240 units will be upgraded in the first phase of the 

project. 

1.4 The Woodland Creation Accelerator Fund was recently announced by the Forestry 

Commission, as a £7.8 million fund to support councils with new staff and expertise 

32



 

 
 

needed to accelerate woodland and tree planting plans. Upper tier authorities including 

county councils are able to apply for funding to increase tree planting.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee was provided with an update on 10 

May 2022 covering a number of items affecting the Council’s work on climate change.  

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Not applicable for update report.  

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 Not applicable for update report.  

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 Not applicable for update report.  

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Not applicable for update report.  

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The allocated budget for the Sustainable Warmth funding is included in the approved 

budget for 2022/23. The budget and any drawdown will be monitored as part of the 

project. 

7.2 A budget carry forward request of £49k has been included in the Outturn Position Report 

which will be presented to Cabinet for approval on 12 July 2022. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 There are no significant legal and governance implications of the outlined initiatives. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

and Deputy Monitoring Officer  

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 No issues identified. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No issues identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 No issues identified. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Each of the initiatives outlined hopes to reduce carbon emissions from council operations 

or from the wider district. 

 

33



 

 
 

 

34



 

 

 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
5th July 2022 

Report of: Councillor Trollope-Bellew 

  Cabinet Member for Culture and 
Visitor Economy 

           

 

Update on the Witham/Slea Blue Green Corridor Project  

To provide the Committee with an update on the projects within the Witham/Slea Blue Green 
Corridor.  
 

 
 

Tracey Mooney, Regeneration Project Manager 

 

  
07866 885174 

 Tracey.Mooney@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative Two or more Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Debbie Roberts, Organisational Development 
Manager 

21 June 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 21 Jun. 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet 
Member for Culture and Visitor Economy  

24 June 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the update 
regarding this project.   

35

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Tracey.Mooney@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

Introduction 

1.1 The Witham/Slea Blue Green corridor project is a co-funded partnership project funded by 
South Kesteven District Council (SKDC), North Kesteven District Council (NKDC), Environ-
ment Agency (EA), and National Trust (NT), with matching funding being received from the 
European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) at 60%. Section 106 monies are also being 
made available from developers in Sleaford (Sleaford West Sustainable Urban Extension 
development). 

1.2 This provided a unique opportunity for SKDC to improve the natural environmental infra-
structure and regenerate the urban conurbations of Grantham and Sleaford via partnership 
grant funding. The objective is to improve ecological connectivity by regenerating the rivers 
and riverside habitats running through Grantham and Sleaford, for the adaptability and re-
silience of the ecosystems, biodiversity, and the local and visiting populations, and to foster 

the creation of better habitats. The result will be an attractive, centralised and environmen-
tally enriched river corridor for residents, visitors, and wildlife. 

1.3 South Kesteven District Council received a grant in-principle of £743,831 from the ERDF in 
April 2019 to deliver 14 environmental and habitat improvement projects along the River 
Witham and River Slea.  

1.4 South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) is acting as the lead partner in this ring-fenced 
programme. The total operating budget of this programme is £1,239,268. SKDC acts as the 
financial body for the project, managing all income and expenditure. This was presented to 
Cabinet on 10 September 2019 and can be accessed at http://moderngov.southkeste-
ven.gov.uk/documents/s23871/ERDF%20Grant%20Agreement%20Final.pdf 

1.5 To accept the funding from ERDF, a contract was required to be entered into with the Min-
istry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) for the maximum amount 
of £743,831. Approval to enter contract was obtained from Cabinet in September 2019. The 
contract was entered into on 9th October 2019.  

1.6 The MHCLG administers the grant defrayal and delivery for the European Union (EU) 
funded programme. 

1.7 The table below details the funding profile: 

Funders Totals 
Percentage of 

Funding 
Payment Terms 

South Kesteven District Council 
£182,922 (plus in-kind 

support) 
15% 

Yearly Budget 

agreed 

North Kesteven District Council £156,300 13% 

Once schemes 
procured by SKDC 

money recovered 

Environment Agency £140,000 11% Quarterly 

National Trust £16,486 1% Upon contracting 

European Union Regional 
Development Fund 

£743,560 60% Quarterly arrears 

Total: £1,239,268 100%  

 

36



 

 
 

 

Delivery, Rationale and Outputs 

1.8 Delivery is managed by a two-person team employed by SKDC who manage procurement, 
grant claims, surveying and reporting. The team is funded by SKDC, who can reclaim a 
proportion of the funding from the grant. The funding reclaimed is utilised within the pro-
gramme for further delivery of projects. The project sits within Organisational Development 
and Change. 

1.9 The overall project will achieve 7.05 hectares of land rehabilitated and a total of 5.29 hec-
tares of habitats supported to attain better conservation status. Therefore, the projects total 
measurable outputs equal 12.34 hectares.  

1.10 The wider direct benefits for the towns and partners are much more important to project 
partners: health benefits (well-being & active-lifestyle), supporting sustainable travel, visitor 
economy and place-making for South Kesteven. 

 Governance and Partners 

1.11 The project is overseen by the project board. The board is responsible for reviewing the 
costs, programme and approving the course of action to be undertaken where a collective 
decision is brought forward for voting. A Councillor from SKDC and NKDC is represented 
alongside representatives from the Environment Agency and National Trust. These four 
stakeholders being the main funding partners of the programme. The Regeneration Project 
Manager is required to report quarterly to the board on items from: delivery, communica-
tions, finance, and any significant matters which require the attention or a key vote from the 
members. The Board members are as follows: 

• Cllr Rosemary Trollope-Bellew – SKDC – Chair 

• Cllr Mervyn Head – NKDC - Vice-Chair 

• Natalie Wren – Environment Agency Representative 

• Ian Cooper – National Trust Representative 

1.12 Terms of reference have been agreed and updated to include a delegation from the Board 
to the Project Manager and Directors of the Council for decision making to align to the Coun-
cils contract and financial regulations. 

1.13 The Regeneration Project Manager and Support Officer continue to liaise closely with the 
Partners, and other stakeholders to ensure smooth delivery. To this end a delivery working 
group consisting of representative from the partner organisations has been formed and re-
mains actively involved in providing expertise and support for the delivery of the programme. 
The working group meet fortnightly.  

1.14 Communications meetings are being set up monthly to ensure that there is a continuous 
message and positive press regarding the project. 

1.15 Wider partners who support the project and its board include local landowners, Lincolnshire 

Wildlife Trust and Lincolnshire Rivers Trust.  

1.16 The programme and projects align with the shared plans of:  

- Lincolnshire Rivers Trust - Urban Opportunities Study 

- Environment Agency – Urban River & Wetlands Plan 

- Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust – River, Wetland and Wildlife targets 

- North Kesteven District Council – Local Plan and NK Plan (Environment) 

37



 

 
 

- South Kesteven – Local Plan 2018 to 2036 (Policy: EN1 and EN2) 

Funding 

1.17 The funding from EU programmes, including ERDF, are guaranteed, and underwritten by 
HM Treasury for the project lifetime.  

1.18 The funding ratio is 40% from the local partners and 60% from the ERDF. The funding im-
pact is: for every £1 contributed from the partnership, £1.50 will be matched from the ERDF 
programme. 

1.19 The funding from the ERDF will be paid back to SKDC at 60% match funding in arrears. As 
such, Claims will complete in Q2 of 2023/2024. 

1.20 The table below outlines the projects: 

 
In-channel Works 

Wetland Creation 
and Improvement 

Meadow Creation Other works 

Berm Creation 
Gravel Introduction 
Bank Softening 
 

Queen Elizabeth 
Park  
Belton Park  
Lollycocks Field 
 

Sedgwick 
Meadows 
Dysart Park 
Queen Elizabeth 
Park 

Tree works as 
required 
Footpath creation 
Public 
Engagement / 
Website 
development 
Volunteer and 
Leaner 
opportunities 

 

Project Delivery and Progress 

1.21 The following projects have been awarded: 

• Dysart Park (Completed) 

o Meadow installation 

o Tree Planting 

o Bird Box installation 

• Sedgewick Meadows (scheduled for completion October 2022) 

o Hedge laying for habitat creation 

o Stock fence installation to facilitate conservation grazing 

o Spot Spraying of invasive species 

o Meadow preparation and installation 

• Lollycocks Field, Sleaford (Scheduled for completion October 2022) 

• In-channel works – 5 projects (scheduled to complete October 2022) 

o Wyndham Park, Grantham 

o St. Catherine’s Road, Grantham 

o Queen Elizabeth Park, Grantham 

o The Hub, Sleaford 

Procurement 

1.22 Welland Procurement are supporting on procurement. The following projects will be finalised 

for open tender procurement over the next month: 

• Sleaford Footpaths - one contract, three footpaths 

o Lollycocks field footpath 

38



 

 
 

o Footpath upgrade upstream of Sleaford 

o Footpath installation upstream of Sleaford 

• Design and Build Contract 

We will be precuring a contractor/s to deliver four projects under two contracts. The first con-

tract is to design and build the wetland in QEP only, and the second contract is to design and 

build three in-channel projects. All three project are in Grantham. 

o QEP Wetland  

o Stonebridge Rd - In-Channel Works 

o Sedgwick Meadows – In-Channel Works 

o Papermill – In-Channel Works 

1.23 The two maps below detail where the works will be undertaken in both Grantham and 
Sleaford: 

 Grantham Works Overview 

 

 

Papermill In-channel 
works  

Stonebridge Road: In-
channel Works 

39



 

 
 

 

 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 A report was presented to the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 13th De-

cember 2017. This presentation took place between the 1st stage of bidding and preceded 
the 2nd stage bid which was submitted in June 2018. The Committee welcomed the initiative 
and recognised the opportunity to obtain funding in order to provide better links and water 
management along the Witham Corridor. 

2.2 A second representation was made to the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

14th February 2018 in which the 2nd stage bidding process was outlined. 

2.3 A key-decision was made by Cabinet on 10th September 2019 to enter into contract with the 

MHCLG to secure the ERDF grant funds. The contract was entered into on 9th October 2019 
for a fixed- term of 2 years. A project change request is going to be submitted to the MHCLG 
for an extension of 9 months due to delays at the start of the project due to Covid. The two 
posts will be extended once approval from the MHCLG is obtained.  

2.4 Individual projects received consultation with members of the public who represent local 

interest groups such as: Friends of Queen Elizabeth Park, Friends of Wyndham Park and 

Dysart Park Action Group. 

2.5 Formal public consultation was undertaken in May 2021. Proposed works were generally 
well received.   

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The project is in the delivery stage, this report is to brief the Committee of progress, the 
Project Board are responsible for detailed decision making. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The project is in the delivery stage, this report is to brief the Committee of progress. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

40



 

 
 

5.1 The project is in the delivery stage, this report is to brief the Committee of progress. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The Project must adherer to strict ERDF branding requirements, which have been commu-
nicated to all partners and other agencies involved, including contractors.  

6.2 A Communications plan is being formulated between both District Councils and Communi-
cations meetings are being set up monthly to ensure that there is a continuous message 
and positive press regarding the project. 

6.3 The project has a web-page (https://www.withamsleabluegreencorridor.co.uk/) and social 
media presence. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 A revenue budget bid was submitted to Council which approved the expenditure of this 
programme over the 3 years of delivery. The total amount of £180,000 has been approved 

for the period of 2019/20 – 2021/2022.  

7.2 The total operating budget of this programme is £1,239,268. Each of the 14 projects has 
been allocated a budget for delivery. The 14 projects are at various stages of procurement 
and delivery, with project budgets being released into the public domain at the point of 
procurement.  

7.3 The additional staffing costs required to extend the project are being met through the current 
total project budget.  Monitoring and reporting on the project will continue throughout the 
duration until the project deliverables have been completed.    

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 Delegation was made at Cabinet to the Board for decision making, this is now included 
within the Terms of Reference to include a delegation from the Board to the Project Manager 
and Directors of the Council for decision making to align to the Councils contract and finan-
cial regulations. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 A broad statement relating to the Council’s responsibilities on ensuring equality of oppor-

tunity and the elimination of discrimination was developed as part of the bid to the ERDF. 
The duty will require that this Council ensures that equal access is created or maintained 
wherever possible along the river corridor. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The projects have been planned in partnership with the Environment Agency, who also 
hold the authority to grant flood consent on all in-channel projects. To mitigate any nega-
tive environmental impact a full ecological and species survey has been carried out along 
each stretch of the river route where projects are planned. Furthermore, the project team 
have undertaken MoRPH River Conditional Assessments prior to the commencement of 
works, to evaluate the current river conditions for each stretch. The team and partnership 
have full confidence that this will support the river system in the urban conurbations and 
also in the downstream reaches of the river. 

41

https://www.withamsleabluegreencorridor.co.uk/


 

 
 

10.2 An ecological clerk has been retained to advise and mitigate for any protected species 
which are evident within the river system. Project plans have also taken into account the 
ecological constraints of the seasons, nesting birds, hibernation and active wildlife sites. 

10.3 Each of the 14 set projects have a 10% contingency built in should any matters arise dur-
ing works and the financial commitment from partners have included the cost for contin-
gency. 

10.4 Individual project packs for procurement have been developed for each project outlining 
the works and consideration for access, materials and constraints on-site. These have 
been created by all involved in the partnership including supporting partners: SKDC, EA, 
NKDC, Lincolnshire Rivers Trust and Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust and the Ecological Clerk 
of the Work.  

10.5 Press and publicity opportunities must follow EU branding guidelines to include the appro-
priate EU and ERDF branding. Communications teams within the partner organisation and 

contractors have been fully briefed on branding requirements.  

10.6 SKDC will need to adhere to document retention guidelines, provide financial transparency 
for the programme to MHCLG and complete a suitable completion report. These matters 
will be completed within the project programme.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 In all instances, the safety of the public will be paramount during the works with a full 
health and safety assessment being undertaken for each site. 

11.2 Any relevant permissions will be sought within project delivery for items which affect the 
highway or walking routes along the river to safeguard members of the public. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The Witham/Slea Blue Green Corridor Project is an environmental improvement project, 
with the primary aim of improving and creating habitat to increase biodiversity and species 
richness. 

12.2 The project is carbon positive, and as such has the potential to offset carbon emissions 
generated by both District Council and to contribute towards the Council’s ambition to 
reduce the Council’s carbon footprint by at least 30% by 2030.  

12.3 Furthermore, the project has the potential to springboard other environmental improvement 
initiatives (potentially through partnership approaches), particularly relevant in light of the 
Environment Act 2021, which requires all new developments to improve or create habitats 
for nature.  

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 Non-Available 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 SEG56 report and minutes 13th December 2017 as follows: http://moderngov.southkeste-

ven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=631&MID=3446 

14.2 Growth Overview and minutes 14th February 2018 is as follows: http://moderngov.south-

kesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=631&MId=3447 

42

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=631&MID=3446
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=631&MID=3446
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=631&MId=3447
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=631&MId=3447


 

 
 

14.3 Full Council Minutes 1st March 2019 approving Budget 2019/20: A district that works for 
everyone, delivering opportunity:  http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocu-
ments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3622&Ver=4 

14.4 Cabinet Key Decision Witham Slea Blue/Green Corridor 11/09/2019: https://modern-
gov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=26131&optionId=0  

14.5 Full Council Appendix B which outlines the recurring SKDC budget for 3 years 2019-2022: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22388/Appendix%20B%20Capac-
ity%20Bids.pdf 

14.6 HM Treasury Funding guarantee for European Union Exit (July 2018): 

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/funding-from-eu-programmes-guaranteed-until-the-
end-of-2020  

14.7 North Kesteven District Council report to Executive Board 8th May 2018: https://democ-

racy.n-kesteven.gov.uk/documents/s87011/01%20Exec%20Report%20PA6%20Fund-

ing%208th%20May%202018%20003.pdf  

14.8 North Kesteven District Council – Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (Adopted 2017): 
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=54815 

14.9 North Kesteven District Council – Environment (Low Carbon NK): https://www.n-keste-
ven.gov.uk/your-council/how-the-council-works/key-plans-strategies-and-policies/poli-
cies/environment/low-carbon-nk-charter-and-plan/ 

14.10 Lincolnshire Rivers Trust - Urban Opportunities Study (March 2015): https://www.n-keste-
ven.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/20215.pdf 

 

15 Appendices 

15.1 n/a 

 
 
 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

6 June 2022  

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 11 September 2019  

Final Decision date   5 July 2022  

 

43

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3622&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3622&Ver=4
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=26131&optionId=0
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=26131&optionId=0
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22388/Appendix%20B%20Capacity%20Bids.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22388/Appendix%20B%20Capacity%20Bids.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/funding-from-eu-programmes-guaranteed-until-the-end-of-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/funding-from-eu-programmes-guaranteed-until-the-end-of-2020
https://democracy.n-kesteven.gov.uk/documents/s87011/01%20Exec%20Report%20PA6%20Funding%208th%20May%202018%20003.pdf
https://democracy.n-kesteven.gov.uk/documents/s87011/01%20Exec%20Report%20PA6%20Funding%208th%20May%202018%20003.pdf
https://democracy.n-kesteven.gov.uk/documents/s87011/01%20Exec%20Report%20PA6%20Funding%208th%20May%202018%20003.pdf
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=54815
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/your-council/how-the-council-works/key-plans-strategies-and-policies/policies/environment/low-carbon-nk-charter-and-plan/
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/your-council/how-the-council-works/key-plans-strategies-and-policies/policies/environment/low-carbon-nk-charter-and-plan/
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/your-council/how-the-council-works/key-plans-strategies-and-policies/policies/environment/low-carbon-nk-charter-and-plan/
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/20215.pdf
https://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/20215.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2022-23 

Committee Membership: 7 

Chairman: Councillor Nikki Manterfield 

Vice-chairman: Councillor Gloria Johnson 

 

REPORT TITLE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
CORPORATE 

PRIORITY 

 

5 July 2022 

Q4 Year End Performance Lead Officer: Debbie Roberts End of year performance 
report  

High performing 
Council  

Climate Action Group meeting 
update/Climate Change 
Update 

Lead Officer: Serena Brown Standing item A Clean and 
Sustainable 
Environment 

Witham Slea Blue/Green 
Corridor Project Update 

Lead Officer: Debbie Roberts  Ongoing project. A Clean and 
Sustainable 
Environment 

 

11 October 2022 

Depot update  Lead Officer: Debbie Roberts    

Carbon and climate reporting Lead Officer: Serena Brown Standing item A Clean and 
Sustainable 
Environment 

 
29 November 2022 

 

 

 

45

A
genda Item

 9



 
 

 

 

Unscheduled items 

Report title Issue / Lead Officer Originated Corporate Priority 

Air Quality Report Committee to contribute to the Action Plan.  
 

Lead Officer: 
Anne-Marie Coulthard (Assistant Director, 
Operations and Public Protection) 

Requirement to review yearly.  A Clean and 
Sustainable 
Environment 

Work of TeamSK – 
Street Scene over the 
duration of the Pandemic 

Lead Officers: 
Anne-Marie Coulthard (Assistant Director, 
Operations and Public Protection) 

Information item, no time scale. A Clean and 
Sustainable 
Environment 

Biodiversity in council 
parks and looking at the 
use of contractors in 
relation to this 

Lead Officer: 
 
 
 

Added by the Committee at the 
meeting held on 8 June 2021 

A Clean and 
Sustainable 
Environment 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



 
 

The Committee’s Remit 
 
The remit of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist with the development of 
policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Air Quality 

• Alcohol, entertainment and leisure licensing (Policy)  

• Allotments 

• Animal Welfare licensing (Policy) (guidance only, no policy: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8305) 

• Business Trade & Licensing (Policy) (guidance only, no policy: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8063) 

• Commercial, Industrial and Clinical Waste Collection and 
Management 

• Dog breeding & control orders 

• Domestic Waste & Recycling Management 

• Energy Efficiency 

• Estate and Grounds Maintenance 

• Flooding 

• Food Hygiene and Safety 

• Gambling & Lotteries licensing (Policy) 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=2553
7&p=0 (2020 policy due for review January 2022) 

• Health & Safety 

• Noise 

• Public Conveniences 

• Renewable Energy 

• Scrap Metal Dealers 

• Street Lighting 

• Street Services and Green Open Space Management 

• Tattoo, licensing and hygiene rating system (Policy) (guidance 
only, no policy: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8317) 

• Taxi & private vehicle, driver and operator licensing (Policy)  

• Wild animal licensing (Policy) (no local policy. 
https://www.gov.uk/licence-wild-animal) 

47

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27433&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8305
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8063
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=25537&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=25537&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8317
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27785&p=0
https://www.gov.uk/licence-wild-animal


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from the meeting held on 10 May 2022
	Minutes

	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	6 Q4 Year End Performance
	Appendix 1 - KPI Update 21-22 Year End - Environment V2

	7 Climate Action Group meeting update/Climate Change Update
	8 Witham Slea Blue Green Corridor Project Update
	9 Work Programme 2022-23

